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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tysan Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in

Bermuda.

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
1/F Harbour Centre, 25

business of The Company is located at 1
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:
e foundation piling

o electrical and mechanical ("E&M”) engineering and building

construction
*  machinery leasing and frading
*  properly investment and management

*  properly development

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ["HKFRSs"| (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ["HKASs") and Interprefat
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally

ions) issued by the Hong Kong

accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties and certain
equity investments, which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise

indicated.
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2008/2009 Annual Report

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group’)
for the year ended 31 March 2009. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the dafe on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All significant income, expenses and unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intercompany transactions and
infercompany balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation
in full.

Minority interests represent the inferests of outside shareholders not held
by the Group in the results and net assets of the Company's subsidiaries.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new interpretations and
amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial
sfatements.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Amendments

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Reclassification of Financial Assets

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11
HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

HKAS 19 = The Limit on a Defined Benefit Assef, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Inferaction

The adoption of these new interpretations and amendments has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements and there have
been no significant changes to the accounting policies applied in these

financial statements.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Firsttime Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements — Cost of an Invesiment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate '

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

Firstime Adoption of HKFRSs ?

HKFRS 2 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment -Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

Business Combinations *

HKFRS 7 Amendments

Amendments fo HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments !

HKFRS 8

Operating Segments !

HKAS 1 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements !

HKAS 23 (Revised)

Borrowing Costs

HKAS 27 (Revised)

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements *

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on liquidation !

HKAS 39 Amendment
Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Eligible Hedged Items *

FARMBERARAG @
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HKAS 39 Amendments

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int @ Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement -
Embedded Derivatives ?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

Customer Loyalty Programmes *

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

Agreements for the Consfruction of Real Esfate '

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners *

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

Transfers of Assets from Customers 2

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to HKFRSs*
which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily with a view
fo removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. Except for the
amendment fo HKFRS 5 which is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009, other amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 although there are
separate transitional provisions for each standard.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

Improvements to HKFRSs contains amendments fo HKFRS 5, HKFRS
7 HKAS T, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS 16, HKAS 18, HKAS 19,
HKAS 20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS 29, HKAS 31,
HKAS 34, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HKAS 40 and HKAS
47,

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, it
has concluded that while the adoption of HKAS 27 (Revised) may
result in changes in accounting policies and HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1
(Revised) may result in new or amended disclosures, these new and
revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial position.
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Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as fo obtain benéfits from ifs
activities.

The results of the subsidiaries are included in the Company's income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's inferests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Associates

An associate is an enfity, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group has
a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. The Group's inferesfs in associates are stafed in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group's share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
festing for an asset is required (other than properties held for sale,
properties under development, inventories, consruction contract asses,
deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable amount
is calculated as the higher of the asset's value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the esfimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
fo the income statement in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made af each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of an asset, but not
fo an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation] had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited fo the income sfatement in the period in which
it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Related parties

A parly is considered to be related to the Group if:

(al

(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more infermediaries,
(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (i) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or iii] has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred
to in (a) or (c);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power in
such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred
to in (c) or (d); or

the party is a post-employment benef t plan for the benefit of
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.
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(Cont'd)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an ifem of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
aftributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition and
location for its infended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put info operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected fo be obtained from the use of an item of property,
plant and equipment and the cost of the ifem can be measured reliably,
the expenditure is capifalised as an additional cost of that assef or as a
replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-ine basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to ifs residual value over ifs
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Building 5%
Equipment and machinery 10%-33/%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Motor yacht 10%

leasehold improvements

10%-331/%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, atf least at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or refirement recognised in the
income sfatement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the
leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially af cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent fo
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which they

arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, which includes all development expenditure, borrowing costs and
other costs directly aftributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Properties under development which have either been pre-sold or which
are intended for sale and are expected to be completed within one year
from the balance sheet date are classified as current assefs.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the balance sheet at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost of land, interest
capitalised during the period of development and other direct costs
attributable to the development of the properties. Net realisable value is
defermined by reference to the prevailing market prices on an individual
property basis, less all costs to completion, if applicable, and costs of
marketing and selling.
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(Cont'd)
Leased assets

leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets fo the Group, other than legal fitle, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assefs held under capitalised finance
leases are included in property, plant and equipment and depreciated
over the estimated useful lives of the assefs. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a constant
periodic rafe of charge over the lease ferms.

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assefs leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited fo the income statement on the
straightline basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to the income
statement on the straightline basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are inifially stated af
cost and subsequently recognised on the straightline basis over the lease
terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

When financial assets are recognised inifially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group determines the classification of ifs financial assefs after initial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the balance sheet dafe.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assefs are recognised
on the frade date, that is, the dafe that the Group commits fo purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assefs within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the markefplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent financial
assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Gains or
losses on investments held for frading are recognised in the income
sfatement.

The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income statement does
not include any dividends on these financial assefs, which are
recognised in accordance with the policy set out for "Revenue
recognition” below.

loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such
assets are subsequently carried af amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated taking info account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate
and fransaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired,
as well as through the amortisation process.

Fair valve

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices
at the close of business af the balance sheet date. For investments where
there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm's length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and
other valuation models.
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(Cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on loans and receivables, which are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
[excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted af
the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
inferest rate computed at initial recognition|. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement, fo
the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment is
made when there is objective evidence [such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and significant
changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor] that the Group will not be able
to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of an invoice.
The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

o the Group retains the rights fo receive cash flows from the assef, but
has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material
delay to a third party under a “passthrough” arrangement; or

o the Group has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
fransferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset and has neither fransferred nor refained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised fo the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the
assef. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or
purchased option (including a cash-setiled option or similar provision) on
the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is
the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase,
except in the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option
or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, where the extent
of the Group's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair
value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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(Cont'd)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-bearing loans
and borrowings|

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and interest-
bearing loans and borrowings are initially stated at fair value less directly
attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
The related interest expense is recognised within “finance cost” in the
income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is freated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income sfatement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee confracts in the scope of HKAS 39 are accounted
for as financial liabilities. A financial guarantee confract is recognised
initially at ifs fair value less transaction costs that are directly affributable
fo the acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee contract, except
when such contract is recognised at fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent fo initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date; and [ii] the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 Revenue.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the firstin, first-out basis,
and net realisable value after making due oHowonce for any obsolete or
slow-moving items. Nef realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less all estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed confract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract cosfs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed consfruction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated fotal cost of the
relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, by reference to the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees earned, measured by the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated fotal cost of the

relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is freated as an
amount due from a contract customer.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due fo a confract customer.
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(Cont'd)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as fo use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive] has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the income sfatement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred fax. Income fax is recognised
in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to items that are
recognised in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured af the amount expected to be recovered from or paid fo the
taxation authorities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

*  where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the fransaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in associates, where the
fiming of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax assefs and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

*  where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the inifial recognition of an asset or liability
and, at the time of the fransaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised fo the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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(Cont'd)
Income tax (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the exfent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset fo be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised fo the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset fo be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rafes that are
expected to apply fo the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is setfled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assefs and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assefs against current tax
liabiliies and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(a)  From foundation piling, E&M engineering and building consfruction
contracts

On the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Consfruction contracts” above;

(b)  From the sale of properties held for sale

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer;

[c]  From machinery frading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Revenue recognition (Cont'd)
(d)  Rental income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased and
on the straightline basis over the lease terms;

(e)  From the rendering of property management services
In the period in which such services are rendered;
(f)|  Interestincome

On an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the nef carrying amount
of the financial asset; and

[g] Dividend income

When the shareholders’ right fo receive payment has been

established.

Employee benefits
Share-based payment fransactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute
fo the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
fransactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model. In
valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions linked fo the price of the

shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.
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(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)
Share-based payment transactions (Cont'd)

The cost of equity-setiled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date
on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the
"vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-setiled
fransactions af each balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which
are freafed as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition
is safisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the ferms of an equity-setiled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification, which
increases the fotal fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-seftled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
freated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the balance sheet
date is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective
employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet
date for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the
year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund”)
for certain of its employees in Hong Kong, the assets of which were held
separately from those of the Group and were managed by an
independent professional fund manager. Confributions under the Fund
were made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and were charged to the income statement as they became
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The ongoing
confributions to the Fund were terminated on 1 April 1999.

Following the infroduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund refirement
benefit scheme [the “MPF Scheme”], the Group has restructured its
retirement scheme arrangements fo comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured a Mandatory
Provident Fund exemption status for the Fund and, in addition, has
participated in an approved defined contribution MPF Scheme with
effect from 1 December 2001, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Confributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
the MPF Scheme.

vest fully with the employees when contributed info

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries located in Mainland China
are required fo participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their covered payroll to the central pension
scheme. The confributions are charged o the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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(Cont'd)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly aftributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of fime to get ready for their infended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company's memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group determines ifs own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency fransactions are initially recorded using the
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the fransactions. Monetary
assefs and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling af the balance sheet
date. All differences are taken fo the income statement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
fransactions. Non-monetfary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was defermined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance sheet date, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated info the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling atf the balance
sheet date and, their income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in a separate component of
equity as the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to

that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income stafement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries are translated info Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
makes various judgements and estimates based on past experience,
expectations of the future and other information. The key sources of
estimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial stafements are disclosed below:

Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for impairment of trade receivables of the Group is based on
the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis of trade receivables
and on management’s judgement. Significant judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each cusfomer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were fo deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
provisions may be required.

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises revenue according fo the percentage of
completion of the individual contract of construction works. The Group's
management estimates the percentage of completion of construction
works if the value of works has not been certified by the customers at the
balance sheet date. These estimates are based on actual cost incurred
over the tofal budgeted cost. Corresponding contract revenue is also
estimated by management. Because of the nature of the activity
undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the contract
activity is entered info and the date when the activity is completed usually
fall into different accounting periods. The Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and confract costs in the budget
prepared for each consfruction contract as the contract progresses.

Current and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related taxes. There are
fransactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax defermination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these maters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will have an impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such defermination is
made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Mainland China land appreciation taxes (“LAT”)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use rights,
borrowing costs, business taxes and all property development
expenditures. The tax is incurred upon transfer of property ownership.

Subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various cities in Mainland
China and the Group has not yet finalised its LAT calculation and
payments with the tax authority. Accordingly, significant judgement is
required in defermining the amount of land appreciation and its related
taxes. The ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these liabilities based on
management's best estimates. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the consolidated financial statements in the period
in which such determination is made.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats: (i) on
a primary segment reporting basis, by business segment; and (i} on a
secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group's business segment
represents a strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the
other business segments. Summary defails of the business segments are
as follows:

(a)  the foundation piling segment;

(b)  the E&M engineering and building construction segment;
(c]  the machinery leasing and frading segment;

(d)  the property invesiment and management segment; and
[e)  the property development segment.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenue is attributed
fo the segments based on the location of the customers, and assets are
affributed fo the segments based on the location of the assets.

Infersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference fo the
selling prices used for sales made fo third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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4. DEER (&) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(b) #iEE 7 (b) Geographical segments

TREJIREBHEZE_FTTNF The following table presents revenue and certain asset and
FZZEENF=ZA=1+—BLLF expenditure information for the Group's geographical segments for
EoimEsBzBaEkaTE the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008.

ERFAXZER -

B A TEEMLE &8
Hong Kong Macau Elsewhere in the PRC Consolidated

IREAE CETN\E ZREAF I\ ZREAF CITNE ZEREAFE CTI)E
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Tz  T#x  TEr  T#x Tz T#x  Téx T

HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

ARUE: Segment revenue:
HETHNAEP  Solestoexiemol cusiomers 1,366,587 859,292 128,698 437421 1,288805 598,336 2784090 1,895,049

HtAEEM T Other segmentinformation:

PEEE Segment assets 826,455 660,367 29414 123525 2770303 2,906,128 3,626,172 3,690,020
PEEERAE  Bonkoverdafts included in

LBEY segment assefs - 8,443 - - - - - 8,443
BEE Total assefs 826,455 668,810 29414 123525 2770303 2906,128 3,626,172 3,698,463
BERY Capilal expendiure 27556 208,271 814 14,059 4892 5773 33262 228,103
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the aggregate of
the value of foundation piling, E&M engineering and building
construction contracts certified by independent architects or quantity
surveyors; income derived from machinery trading and property
management; rental income from property and machinery leasing; and
income from the sale of properties held for sale, after eliminations of all
significant infragroup fransactions.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

—EFNE —ZENF

2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Yz Revenue:
HEIT Foundation piling 1,346,515 1,079,387
CERBETR E&M engineering and building consfruction 134,505 190,724
BBEHERES Machinery leasing and trading 15,954 26,081
MERERER Property investment and management 104,969 100,999
MEER Property development 1,182,147 497,858
2,784,090 1,895,049
Hi AR &BH Other income and gains:

FEWA Inferest income 1,631 2,343
REERE Insurance claims 7,306 811

HERMEYE Gain on disposal and write-off of
B RREER 2 8H items of property, plant and equipment 1,283 6,088
HE-—BREVMEZET Gain on disposal of an investment property 897 4,164
REAEMN LMBERZRBF  Gainon prepaid land lease payments resumed — 3,183

& — KB A E Gain on disposal of partial

H DR BT inferest in a subsidiary 410 —
GO Subsidy income* 7,681 —
EXAM - R Foreign exchange gains, net 53 1,814
Hth Others 3,934 2,688
23,195 21,091

* BAEZBABRALERERZGHEIR
S

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this income.
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ELE=g29S 6. FINANCE COSTS
&E GROUP
“BBAE ZEBIZNF
2009 2008
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ARBIFAZBEE Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts wholly
ZRITEE RGBS 2B repayable within five years 28,294 33,623
B BRBPMEERL less: Interest capitalised in properties
ZHME (H&F17) under development (nofe 17) (2,860) (14,025)
25,434 19,598
BRBE A1 2 F 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEBZBBAEMEAR, GA) The Group's profit before tax is arrived at affer charging/[credifing):

THERE&ER

—2EAE  —BENA

2009 2008
fitat FEL FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
E Depreciation 14 49,428 40,828
EHERARNIHEER Recognition of prepaid land lease payments 16 2,780 1,190
T REFEERD Minimum lease payments under operating
ZREBHATR leases of land and buildings 10,533 11,962
REZBIHESE Rental of construction equipment 12,615 14,167
ZERTB 2 - Auditors' remuneration:
REFEE Provision for the year 2,350 2,084
FEERETR Underprovision in the prior year — 5
2,350 2,089
EERA XL Employee benefit expense
(BEEEME —M58) ©  (including directors’ remuneration - note 8):
ITERFS Wages and salaries 191,466 162,875
DA 2 BBk X i Equity-seffled share option expense 5,193 7 Ak
RS EMER Pension scheme confributions 6,174 5,541
202,833 176,141
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont'd)

fizt
Notes

Foreign exchange gains, net*

Impairment/(write-back of impairment)
of trade receivables, net*

Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value*

Gain on disposal and write-off of items of

property, plant and equipment*
Gain on disposal of an investment property *

Gain on prepaid land lease
payments resumed *
Gain on disposal of partial inferest in
a subsidiary*
Fair value losses on equity investments af
fair value through profit or loss, net*
Impairment of other assets*
Impairment of an amount due from an associate*
Rental income from operating leases
of machinery
Gross rental income from investment properties
less: Direct operating expenses arising on
rental-eaming investment properties

Net renfal income from invesiment properties

EHEREZBRBBA* Dividend income from listed investments*
* EHcHECREREGABRRZIE *
X HFEI R EHRAREF ]

A o

“EETAE  ZTIN\E
2009 2008
T T

HK$000  HK$'000
(53) (1,814)
1,220 88|
8,963 67
(1,283) 16,088]
(897) 14,164]
— (3,183)
(410) -
4,294 3,380
20 20

10 15
(9,998)  (18,427)
(102,859) (99,885)
25,406 27,159
(77,453) (72,726)
(334) (28]

These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net” or “Other income
and gains” on the face of the consolidated income statement.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules

and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as

follows:
£8 GROUP
—EEAE —EENF
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$7000 HK$'000
Be Fees:
HITES Executive directors — —
BAFNTES Independent non-executive directors 432 360
BTESZHMMS Other emoluments of executive directors:
EXRFHH - BE=EL Basic salaries, housing allowances, other
H 28 R E WA &= allowances and benefits in kind 24,833 23,364
DARBCHE S 2 B v s Equity-sefiled share option expense 4,674 6,961
RIREFEIHR Pension scheme contributions 72 72
30,011 30,757

REF  REARA 2 BRETS G
BERIBEHRRMEIL) - ETEZE
BERAAEBEE®RZRBEXER
B-ZEEREZATEDINRL A
HEE YEREBHEREXRAT
XM AREEHMBEREZEEE
BRNEXEEHE 2 HE -

In prior year, certain direcfors were granted share options, in respect of

their services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the

Company, further defails of which are set out in note 34 to the financial

statements. The fair value of such options which has been recognised in

the income statement over the vesting period, was defermined as at the

date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the

current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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8.

EEME (8)

ENSENBLUEEMSMT

—BENE
HITEF :

RREXL
BRERE
BRI
HEENE
BRELLE
BREL

BUFNTES
SBEERE
X g
EFRAKLE

st

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

2 - 331 EE
RENFG BRE
Salaries, B Bike

allowances  Employee &t &3k

The remuneration paid or payable to each of the directors is as follows:

and share Pension
Bne benefits option scheme st
Fees in kind benefits contributions Total
FEL FET FET FET FET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
2009
Executive directors:
Mr. Francis Cheung — 9,320 1,500 12 10,832
Mr. Fung Chiu Chak Victor — 5,884 1,500 12 7,396
Mr. David Chien — 890 360 12 1,262
Miss Jennifer Kwok — 2,604 420 12 3,036
Mr. Chiu Chin Hung — 3,312 294 12 3,618
Mr. Wong Kay — 2,823 600 12 3,435
— 24,833 4,674 72 29,579
Independent non-executive directors:
M:r. Fan Chor Ho Paul 144 — — — 144
Mr. Tse Man Bun 144 — — — 144
Mr. lung Chee Ming George 144 — — — 144
432 — — — 432
Total 432 24,833 4,674 72 30,011
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

2008

Executive directors;

Mr. Francis Cheung

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak Victor
Mr. David Chien

Miss Jennifer Kwok

Mr. Chiu Chin Hung

Mr. Wong Kay

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Fan Chor Ho Paul

Mr. Chau Cham Son

M. Tse Man Bun

Mr. lung Chee Ming George

Tofal

2008/2009 4 #
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E23 0 =t E&
REMF &= BRE

Salaries, & Rik&

allowances  Employee  FTEIft 5K

and share Pension
e benefits option scheme @t
Fees in kind benefits  contributions Total
FET FHET FET FET T
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
— 8,024 2,165 12 11,101
— 5,488 2,165 12 7,665
— 850 566 12 1,428
— 2,500 661 12 3,173
— 2,854 460 12 3,326
— 2,748 044 12 3,704
— 23,364 6,961 72 30,397
120 — — — 120
48 — — — 48
120 — — — 120
72 — — — 72
360 — — — 360
360 23,364 6,961 72 30,757

waive any remuneration during the year.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed fo
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the current and prior years are all
directors of the Company, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 above.

. TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided af the rate of 16.5% (2008:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. The lower Hong Kong profits tax rate is effective from the year
of assessment 2008,/2009, and so is applicable to the assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong for the whole year ended 31 March 2009.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere in the PRC have been calculated
at the applicable tax rates prevailing in the areas in which the Group
operafes, based on existing legislation, inferpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

&8 GROUP
—ETHhF ZEENF
2009 2008
TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REE RN HIBREE - Provision for tax in respect of profit for the year:
HE PRC:
BB Hong Kong 6,046 1,879
Hiti @ Elsewhere 267,522 59,218
273,568 61,097
FFEEREBTR (BEEE) : Underprovision/|overprovision) in the prior year:
R PRC:
BiE Hong Kong (132) —
H i ith [ Elsewhere 428 459
296 459
EREFIR Deferred tax (7,772) (860)
AEBZRERX BT Total tax charge for the year 266,092 60,696
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10. TAX (Cont'd)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax using the

statutory rates for the countries or regions in which the Company and ifs

subsidiaries are domiciled fo the tax charge/(credit) of the effective tax

HAY (&) ZHEMNT - rate, is as follows:
£E GROUP
—EENF ZETN\F
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B % 515 A Profit before tax 686,856 210,727
PNEER KA B2 A Tox at the sfatutory rafes 164,480 46,968
THIEERRE Provision for land appreciation tax 114,667 17,105
THREN I HETE Tox effect of land appreciation fax (29,051) —
HEAHE 2R RHIE Adijustments in respect of current fax
e 2 38 of previous periods 296 459
BARBBA Income not subject o fax (2,022) (10,690)
AFHRBIE 2 B X Expenses not deductible for fax 12,725 4,937
BEMREAAREEFEREARAT  Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
AR IROER 2 FE profits of the Group's PRC subsidiaries 18,968 —
BRI MIEEE Tox losses utilised from previous periods (15,251) (3,103)
AERRAEBR Tox losses not recognised 1,280 5,020
BRASEERRXTE Tax charge at the Group's
ZBERE effective rate 266,092 60,696

1. XA B REREALGEF

ARANUNBRREEZBE_ZT
NFEZA=Z+—HBIFEARARAKE
BEGRERFNBEADAZEF
16,841,000 T (Z T T\ F : 15
5,098,000 7T.) (FI5E35(b)) °

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

The consolidated profit atfributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2009 includes a profit of HK$ 16,841,000
(2008: loss of HK$5,098,000) which has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company [note 35(b)).
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12. R &

13.

R B — AR AR 1B
(ZZ2ZNEFE - 1781

B 2 REMRE —
FREL B 5B
(ZZEZENF  1.581)

AERRBRN 2 KBKEERRR]
BRRAGERZBERBFAE L#
/e

ARaEBERRREIEERER

FREXRBF THIZBAR R @R RK
R B R F E 4 A 346,675,000 7T
(ZZZ)N\F :107,411,0008 T) kR
AEERNEBATEBRMETSH
837,930,287 ( = T & N\ #F
837,465,9030%) T & -

ARFERARRBHARTEBEREZT
FERRAARERBRZFHME
WU BERBE_TTAF=ZA=1—
ALEFERIEREBRR 2B ER
KB SEREBRZEREN
TEEEZE -

BE_TT)\FE=-A=+—HLEE
ZHREERMNVZBAQNRLTER
R R FE {835 107,411,000/ STt & ©
HERAAZMEFES L BRRE
AERBEZRTLTERKRE - AFES
M EARBMERTEZRE - URERR
EZFENTEMEEREREER
71,951,146/ X @ A% < INHEF 19 -

13.
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12. DIVIDENDS
—REAE  ZTIT)N\F
2009 2008
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interim - HKT cent (2008: HKT cent)
per ordinary share 8,382 8,375
Proposed final - HK1.5 cenfs
(2008: HKT.5 cents)
per ordinary share 12,573 12,562
20,955 20,937

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic eamings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
of HK$346,675,000 (2008: HK$ 107,411,000, and the weighted
average number of 837,930,287 (2008: 837,465,903] ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per ordinary share is presented for the year ended
31 March 2009 since the exercise price of the share options of the
Company outstanding during the year is higher than the average market
price of the Company’s ordinary shares and, accordingly, they have no
dilutive effect on the basic earnings per ordinary share.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount for the year
ended 31 March 2008 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$107,411,000. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the number of ordinary shares in issue during that year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on

the deemed exercise of all share options info ordinary shares during that
yearof 1,951,145,
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GROUP
FERME BAREE g
Equipment  Furniture ot B NxEE
B¥ ond and Motor Motor  Leasehold #;
Building  mochinery ~fixtures  vehicles yocht improvements Totel
Térn  TErn  TEr  FEx Tt  Thrn  TEx
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000
31 March 2009
Cost:
At beginning of yeor 27913 710,086 30,626 20,760 6,098 59513 854,99
Additions - 28,808 2467 768 - 119 33,262
Disposals and write-off - (31422)  [1,085)  (1911) - - (34418)
Exchonge realignment - 235 6 125 - 649 1,078
At 31 March 2009 uN3 707707 32077 19,762 6098 61361 854918
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
At beginning of year 582 568144 23062 12981 6098 49753 660,620
Depreciafion provided
during the year 1395 40,580 1928 2,333 - 3192 49,428
Disposals and wite-off - (29753) (953)  {1,689) - - [32395)
Exchange realignment - 178 54 56 - 638 926
At 31 March 2009 1977 579,149 24,091 13,681 6,098 53583 678,579
Net book value:
At 31 March 2009 25936 128,558 7,986 6,081 - 7778 176,339
At 31 March 2008 27331 141942 7,564 7,779 S 9760 194376
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14. Y% ~ S R&E (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
C3E] GROUP
RERKSE BAREE il
Equipment  Fumiture R [ NEEE
e and and Motor Mofor  Leasehold &5
Building  machinery fixtures vehicles yacht improvements Total

TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

“ZEZ\f=A=+-H 31 March 2008
A Cost:
L) At beginning of yeor — 676128 31383 17574 6,008 60,530 791713
e Additions 27913 76,848 3,615 5,383 - 4452 118211
HE B8 Disposals and write-off — {44024 [4706) (2,569 — (8,478) (59777
ERAEE Exchange reclignment — 1,134 334 372 - 3,009 4849
R-ZEN\F=-A=1-H At 31 Maorch 2008 27913 710086 30626 20760 6098 59,513 854,99
ZHHER Accumuloted depreciafion
BE - and impairment;
)] At beginning of year — 562186 26,063 13,199 6,098 52949 660,495
REE Depreciafion provided
WERE during he year 382 A7 1,424 2,010 - 2,341 40,828
& R Disposals and wite-off - [29348]  (40673) (24066 - (8477] (44,964
ESHE Exchonge realignment - 835 248 238 - 2,940 4,261
RZEZNF=A=t-H At 31 March 2008 582 568144 23002 12,981 6,008 49753 660,620
REFE Net book value:

RZEEN\F=A=+-H At 31 Maorch 2008 27,331 141,942 7,564 7779 - 9760 194376
RZEZ+5=A=+-H At31 March 2007 - 113942 5,320 4,375 - 7581 131218
AEBETET RENEBCHER Certain of the Group's building, equipment and machinery were
RITAASERMRITEE 2B (K pledged to banks as security for certain banking facilities granted to the

#31) o Group [nofe 31).

AEBETRERKSBELERY Certain of the Group's equipment and machinery are leased to third
HETFE=7  BHRNE-TERE parties under operating leases, further summary details of which are
L B 5 3R &% T 536 (a) © included in note 36]a) to the financial statements.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

The gross amounts of the Group's equipment and machinery held for use
under operating leases and the related accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses are as follows:

£E GROUP

—EThF ZZTTENF

2009 2008

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

AR Cost 67,606 92,374
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation (55,550) (66,408)
ZEPREEE Accumulated impairment losses (182) (362)
REFEE Net book value 11,874 25,604

B 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
58 GROUP

—EThF —TENF

2009 2008

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

RENZKEA Carrying amount at beginning of year 1,210,660 1,122,780
IR Additions — 6,007
HE Disposals (1,463) (35,300)
NFEEZH Fair value changes (28,646) 89
E B Exchange realignment 25,609 117,084
REKRZKEA Carrying amount at end of year 1,206,160 1,210,660

FARMBERARAG @

A 5 0 ¢ Y ik
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED 2008/2009 Annual Report

S8 5 8 ¢ WY ik
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2009 —ZTAF=A=+—H

15. REW=E (&) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)
AEEZBRENMEZRATHDRES - The Group's investment properties are held under the following lease
HEohmuEwmT : ferms in the following geographical locations:
—EEAFE=ZA=1—H 31 March 2009

B
PRC
0 Hithits & e
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT A Medium term leases 11,200 873,600 884,800
REHEL long term leases — 321,360 321,360

11,200 1,194,960 1,206,160

—EENF=RA=+—H 31 March 2008
o
PRC
Bt Hofth i [ st
Hong Kong Elsewhere Tofal
TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R HEIFR A Medium term leases 11,800 — 11,800
REHEL long term leases — 1,198,860 1,198,860
11,800 1,198,860 1,210,660
AEBREVEER_TTNF= The Group's investment properties were revalued on an open market,
A=t—HRBIURXRAERYEM existing use basis, as at 31 March 2009, by Vigers Appraisal and
BRI AR HT & EF BB AR A AR Consulting Limited, a firm of independent professionally qualified
RRAMBRIRERGEEEEHHE - property valuers. The investment properties are leased fo third parties
RENMEDIRBLERNVHEETFE = under operating leases, further summary defails of which are included in
7 EEBECE—THEBENYH note 36(a) to the financial statements.
R E36(a) ©
AEEETRENECERTRITE Certain of the Group's investment properties were pledged to banks as
RAAEEREE TRITEECER security for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (nofe 31).

(B 5E31) °
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

GROUP

Carrying amount at beginning of year
Additions during the year

Resumed during the year

Recognised during the year

Carrying amount af end of year

Current portion included in other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

Non-current portion

—gTRE TINE
2009 2008
FHT FATT

HK$000  HK$'000
109,127 1,437

— 109,892

- 1,012)
(2,780) (1,190)
106,347 109,127
(2,781) 2,780)
103,566 106,347

The leasehold lands are held under a medium term lease and are

situated in Hong Kong.

17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

GROUP

Balance at beginning of year

Additions during the year

Inferest capitalised (nofe 6

Transfer to properties held for sale (nofe 23)
Exchange realignment

Balance af end of year
Current portion

Non-current portion

—EENEF —EENF
2009 2008
FET TFET
HK$7000 HK$'000
784,478 700,598
630,325 665,901
2,860 14,025
(854,310) (672,275)
16,883 76,229
580,236 /84,478
(270,374) (529,966
309,862 2545l
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18. DEPOSIT PAID FOR LAND ACQUISITION

Deposit of HK$348,835,000 (2008: HK$177,536,000] was paid
for the acquisition of a parcel of land in Shenyang, the PRC, at a
consideration of approximately RMB307,800,000 (equivalent to
HK$348,835,000). Further defails of the transaction were disclosed in
the Company’s circular dated 28 January 2008.

Bf B A R E = . INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
NE COMPANY
—E2ThEF —TENE
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FLETRG - REAAR Unlisted shares, at cost 17,038 11,845
L= PNEIPE: Amounts due from subsidiaries 835,549 841,969
E Impairment (60,426) (64,761]
775,123 /77,208
UG ¢ Amounts due fo subsidiaries (146,169) (144,892)
—FRIEHER Portion due within one year,
mEBEHBH classified as current liabilities 146,169 144,892
792,161 789,053

FR - ARBRIETHBLARER
It KT B A Rl 2 R R HE RN E R
4,335,00087C - HE-_TZTN\F=A
=+ HLEFE ERETHEAR
2R HERR B E18 14,053,000 7T -
FEREZEHBARZEREBE
B -REER  WBRARIZRZER
MBARZAEHRERBARES -
FARBEBEIZHNBRRGEFEARNE
KERR—FENEE - M AERD
BEZHBARLEFNBERMEE
ARzt —FAEE  YEABTZSE
MBARZERZER - MBARE
FZHEEAREAFERS -

During the year, the Company received repayment from certain
subsidiaries and write back of impairment of HK$4,335,000 was
recognised for amounts due from subsidiaries. During the year ended 31
March 2008, impairment losses of HK$ 14,053,000 were recognised
for amounts due from certain subsidiaries as those subsidiaries had
suffered losses for years. At the balance sheet date, the amounts due
from and to subsidiaries are unsecured and inferestfree. The balances
with subsidiaries included in the current liabilities are repayable on
demand or within one year whereas the balances with subsidiaries
included in non-current assets are not expected fo be repaid within one
year from the balance sheef dafe and are considered as quasi-equity
loans to those subsidiaries. The carrying amounts of balances with the
subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.
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ARAlZEBHBRAAFBHOT :

ML
AR EEE
Place of
incorporation/

=y registration

Name and operations

A (BR)ERBERAT BB

Tysan [Hong Kong) Holdings Hong Kong
Limited

REAMETIRAERLA EE
(MaF1k3) Hong Kong

Tysan Foundation Limited
[notes 1 and 3)

RAFECRM) BRAA BP9
(Bat1) Macau

Tysan Construction (Macau)
Limited [note 1)

FERMEEERRR (HE3) Bt
Tysan Machinery Hire Limited Hong Kong
[note 3)
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The Company has undertaken not to demand repayment of the amount
due from a subsidiary, Tysan Foundation Limited, of HK$80,000,000
(2008: HK$80,000,000), in order to let the subsidiary maintain the
required minimum working capital as stipulated by government
authorities.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

EBTKR
BREmBRA
RAEE AREEEZ
Nominal value of REBDHL
issued and Percentage
fully paid of equity ETEXH
registered/ attributable to Principal
share capital the Company activities
“EBRhE —TITNF
2009 2008
EBR2ET 100 100 REZER
Ordinary Investment
HK$2 holding
L 100 100 BT 1R
51,000,000/ 7T Foundation
EIERR piling
3,000,000/ 7T
Ordinary
HK$51,000,000
Deferred
HK$3,000,000
L 100 100 B SR
R P9 25,0007T Foundation
Ordinary piling
MOP25,000
Rl 100 100 BWEE
10,000/ 7T Machinery
AT R hiring
200,000/ 7T
Ordinary
HK$10,000
Deferred
HK$200,000
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19. MEBRRER (&)

AAFZ EEMBATHENT : ()

=1

Name

ZAMETE (BE)BERAF
(1)

Tysan Contractors (Hong Kong]
Limited (note 1)

RALHIRERAA
(K1)

Tysan Geotechnical Limited
[note 1)

TEEMTIEBRAF
(Haz1)

Proficiency Equipment Limited
[note 1)

FETREEFRAA
Bz 1)

Proficiency Engineering Limited
[note 1)

MRERAE (K1)
Lion Bright Limited (nofe 1)

FAERBRRA (Ka1Xk3)
Tysan Management Limited
[notes 1 and 3)

ML
EEAU IS 3:u8
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

AR
Hong Kong

)
Hong Kong

B0
Hong Kong

)
Hong Kong

58
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

2008/2009 Annual Report

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTK
BREMBA
BRAHEE
Nominal value of
issued and

fully paid
registered/
share capital

EBR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

BB T
Ordinary
HK$2

L
6,750,000/ 7T
Ordinary
HK$6,750,000

EBik2E T
Ordinary
HK$2

TEM2B T
Ordinary
HK$2

EBA100/8 T
B2 T
Ordinary
HK$100
Deferred

HK$2

ARAEME 2
REBFDL

Percentage

of equity

attributable to
the Company

—2EAE
2009

100

100

100

100

100

100

—EENF
2008

100

TEXHK
Principal
activities

HAEER
R A IR

Project management

and provision
of consultancy

services

i B 3 B R
Site
investigation

BWMAEE R
HE
Machinery
hiring and
frading

RETIRRS
Provision of
Provision of
engineering

services

B E R
BE
Machinery
hiring and
frading

TXRER
Corporate
management



19. B R RIEZR (&)

ARBIZEIEMBRRFEWT : (8)

=1

Name

HIEERAA
Sun Sparkle Limited

ERERAF
Great Unison Limited

FERERRBRAA

Tysan Invesiment Limited

FAMEERREERAT
Tysan Property Development
& Investment Limited

REREBRRA
Tysan Construction
Company Limited

MaiREBRAR (HiF1)
Faithmark Investments Limited
[note 1)

Tremend Yield Limited
(K1)

[note 1)
“HREBRAF (HiF1)

Trions Investment Limited
(note 1)

EZEREBRAF (HiF1)
Sure Faith Investment Limited
[note 1)

)=y
BN E 3ok
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

B
Hong Kong

)
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

)
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

)
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

)
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTK
HEEMBRE
BRAHE
Nominal value of
issued and

fully paid
registered/
share capital

ERR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

EBiR1ET
Ordinary
HK$1

ERR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

EBik2E T
Ordinary
HK$2

EBR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

BB T
Ordinary
HK$2

B 208 T
Ordinary
HK$20

BB T
Ordinary
HK$2

EBR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

ARREMG 2
REBDHL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
“EBRhE —TIT)NF
2009 2008
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

TEXHK
Principal
activities

bERE
Corporate
financing

Corporate
financing

HEER
Investment
holding

BEER
[nvestment
holding

RARK
Investment
holding

MERE
Property
investment

MERE
Property
investment

MERE
Property
investment

EECEE
Property
holding

Il:.l.
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19. MEBRRER (&)

ARRZ TEMBARFENT - (B)

&L,
RIS E—E 3.k
Place of
incorporation/

=g registration
Name and operations
EEEMERRNR (Ha1) BB
Duncan Properties Limited Hong Kong
[note 1)
Dragonhill Limited (#f#1) 58
[note 1) Hong Kong
MR EBR AT (Kat1) BB
Great Regent Investments Hong Kong
Limited [note 1)
BRMBR AR (Bit1) N
Great Prosper Limited Hong Kong
[note 1)
FAFMERSE (KE)BRAF FEAR
(Hix1%4) HAE
Tysan Property Development ([ E)
(Tianjin) Company Limited /R ER
[notes 1 and 4) People's
Republic
of China
("PRC")/
Mainland
China
FAEME (LB) BRAT hE
(Mt 1k5) FR B A 3
Tysan Land (Shanghai) PRC/
Limited (notes 1 and 5) Mainland
China

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTK
BREMBA
BRAHEE
Nominal value of
issued and

fully paid
registered/
share capital

EBR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

k2B T
Ordinary
HK$2

EBR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

ERB100% T
Ordinary
HK$100

15,500,000 7T
US$15,500,000

20,500,000% 7T
US$20,500,000

ARAEME 2
REFDL
Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company

ZEEhEFE —ZTTNHF
2009 2008

100 100

100 100

100 100

90 Q0

90 Q0

80 80

TEXHK
Principal
activities

HEER
Investment
holding

"B
[nvestment
holding

HEER
Investment
holding

"B
[nvestment

holding

MEER
Property

development

MEEERE
Property

development



19. B R RIEZR (&)

ARBIZEIEMBRRFEWT : (8)

=1

Name

ZATERRBBERRAA
(K1)

Tysan Engineering Company
Limited (note 1)

FRIRR(BE)BRAT
(Kt 1)

Tysan Engineering [H.K.)
Company Limited
(note 1)

ZABHAERRA (HE1)
Tysan Trading Company
Limited (note 1)

ERBEEERAF (FIE1)
China Garden International
Limited (note 1)

ARBERRRA (Ffat1)
Red Shine Investment Limited
[note 1)

BRIEBRAT (HiF1)
Hiat Investment Limited
[note 1)

ENEARDR (HE1)

Carriway Limited (nofe 1)

BRTERDE (K1)
Fund House Limited (note 1)

)=y
BN E 3ok
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

BE
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B0
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B0
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B0
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTK
HEEMBRE
BRAHE
Nominal value of
issued and

fully paid
registered/
share capital

gl
10,000 & 7T
Ordinary
HK$10,000

gl
18,500,000 & 7T
Ordinary
HK$18,500,000

& AR 100/E T
Ordinary
HK$100

@100 T
Ordinary
HK$ 100

EBk2E T
Ordinary
HK$2

EBR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

TRR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

LB 2E T
Ordinary
HK$2

ARREMG 2
REBDHL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
“EBRhE —TIT)NF
2009 2008
70 70
70 70
60 60
60 60
60 60
60 60
60 60
60 60

TEXHK
Principal
activities

HEER
Investment
holding

REEHE
T R 75
Provision of
electrical and
mechanical

services

—RES
General
frading

BEZR
Investment

holding
KREZER

Investment

holding

MERE
Property
investment

HEER
Investment

holding
REERK

Investment
holding

Il:.l.
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19. MEBRRER (&)
ARB TEMBLRFENT : (B)

&L,
RIS E—E 3.k
Place of
incorporation/

=g registration

Name and operations

EEYEER (LE) hE
BRRE (HiE1Xk4) B 3

Duncan Property Management PRC/
(Shanghai] Company Limited Mainland
[notes 1 and 4) China

LEEEBRREME hE,
HELEERAF B A 3
(Htez1X%4) PRC/

Shanghai China Garden Mainland
International Real Estate China
Development & Management
Company Limited
[notes 1 and 4)

FEREESFEME hE
HELEERAF B A3t
(Hfez1X%4) PRC/

Shanghai Changning Duncan Mainland
Property Development China
Company Limited
[notes 1 and 4)

FBESEMERATRAT hE/
(i 1R5) PRI ALt

Shanghai Duncan Property PRC/
Consulting Company Mainland

Limited China
[notes 1 and 5)

Consco Investment Company N
Limited Hong Kong
(Ktat1)

[note 1)

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTK
BREMBA
BRAHEE
Nominal value of
issued and

fully paid
registered/
share capital

500,000 7T
US$500,000

5,000,000% 7T
US$5,000,000

10,000,000 7T
US$10,000,000

100,000% 7T
US$100,000

Egal
100,000/ 7T
Ordinary

HK$ 100,000

—2EAE
2009 2008

ARAEME 2
REFDL
Percentage

of equity
attributable to

the Company
—EENF

60 60

60 60

60 60

60 60

58.25 58.25

TEXHK
Principal
activities

MRER
Property
management

MERE
Property
investment

MEZER
Property
development

REtmE
HHRS
Provision of
property
consultancy

services

BB
[nvestment

holding
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19. B A RIER (&) 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
ARBIZEENBRAIFEWT - (8) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)
EBTK
BREmBRA
AL RAEE AREEEZ
AR EEE Nominal value of REBDHL
Place of issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity TEXER
£ registration registered/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
“EBRhE —TIT)NF
2009 2008
RAREIRARATA BN EFELbe 50 50 RERTR
(Mat 1 %2) Hong Kong 10,200,000 /& 7T BETRR
Tysan Building Construction Ordinary Provision of
Company Limited HK$10,200,000 building and
[notes 1 and 2) construction
works
ZATRRABRAA N TRR2ET 50 50 RERTR
(MtaE 1% 2) Hong Kong Ordinary BETRE
Tysan Project Management HK$2 Provision of
Limited [notes 1 and 2) building and
construction
works
BRARE(CRP) BERAT P EpaLe 50 50 RERTR
(Mat1k2) Macau  JEFTH 25,000 7T BETIR
Mac Tysan Construction Ordinary Provision of
(Macau) Limited MOP25,000 building and
[notes 1 and 2) construction
works
REERAEFRAT &, 10,000,000% T 46.6 46.6 NERA
(Hist1 ~ 2%5) AR A b Us$10,000,000 Property
Tianjin Infernational Building PRC/ investment
Company Limited Mainland
[notes 1,2 and 5) China
REBRAF (K1) B LR 10,0008 97 100 SAER
Sparkle Key Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
[notes 1) HK$ 10,000 holding

Il:.l.
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19. MEBRRER (&)
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

et Notes:

1. BEBRNEAARE - 1. Held through subsidiaries.

2. ARAEREASEEZEZRGE 2. The Company has the power to cast the majority of votes at meetings of the
T’Eﬁﬁﬁ?%@x;ﬁ BREWRB/E board of directors of these entities and therefore they are regarded as
REIZMEA subsidiaries of the Company.

3. EBERHERELKRS (REELD 3. The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends (other than a fixed non-
A IR RE 2 FE AR B 1018 /%TEZ cumulative dividend af the rate of 5% per annum for any financial year

M HERRGESE 2 BRILE during which the net profit of the relevant company available for dividends
ZEEIEBARERRI) - TEER exceeds HK$ 1 billion], no rights to vote at general meetings, no rights fo
BREAE ERE MARNEERREE receive any surplus on a retum of capital on a winding-up (other than the

H&HXéfﬁLuZEﬁﬁﬁ%(‘Z%Hx@

Z B BIBARRRSN -

HZRRZE

%EA%@FﬁﬁMEWWﬁ%%ﬁ

D
ﬁ

[

4, ZE
5E

F> ‘ﬂﬂfh}
%ﬁk

E

o1
o> 8

-
z
AE D

>
>H¥k i‘-ﬁ%

ERAINZARBMBRARRESR
RERGEEZAFEREREATE
FERAREEAHNEEFELHE
DA BEERR - FNEMHE QR
2o BATBRITE -

>k ££10,000f8% 7T) o

)HETFEP BOEBIE M RSN 4.

$ETJ’§EP BA B A R b 5.

amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders of the ordinary
shares of that company have been distributed in such a winding-up of a
sum of HK$ 1,000 billion in respect of each ordinary share).

These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the
PRC law.

These entities are registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under the PRC
low.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give defails
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

20. BBE N RIS 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
&6 GROUP
—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
FEx FEr
HK$000 HK$'000
BiEEEFE Share of nef assets — —
FN e Amount due from an associate 274 264
274 264
o ORE less: Impairment (274) (264)
BENRZRARABERR 28 RE The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interestfree and has no
TERRE o fixed terms of repayment.
BERRBEF L REERERATER The carrying amount of the balance with an associate approximates fo its
=, fair value.



21.

. BELTRES (B)

TRBERBZFROT

=1

Name

NEEEERAT

Turbo Dragon Investment Limited

FRIMEZRATIEFELARED
(LA UNCIE SR AN - g
ERAABNERZAKERELD
Al EERR HIHEMBKEARE
SIBABBRITE °

BAFEFABREZRORE

ooospooo i BOHBEBEBERAE R A G
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal associate are as follows:

REEELZ
BEEED
Pz 2 81T Percentage
RADFHE B3t of ownership
Particulars B O it B inferest FTEEK
of issued Place of attributable Principal
shares held incorporation to the Group activity
BREBEREE HE 50 REER
18T Hong Kong Investment
Ordinary holding
shares of
HK$1 each

The above fable lists the associate of the Group which, in the opinion of
the directors, affected the Group's share of results of the associates or
formed a substantial portion of the Group’s interests in associates. To give
details of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

21. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

&E GROUP
—EENF ZEZETN\F
2009 2008
FHET TETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REELTZ Listed equity investments in
BinikE - A Hong Kong, ot market value 2,501 14,452

TR -FENFR-_TTNEF=A
ST RZEhRERIRFHESR
M

The above equity investments at 31 March 2009 and 2008 were
classified as held for frading.



TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED 2008/2009 Annual Report

S8 5 8 ¢ Y ik
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2009 —ZTAF=A=+—H

22. 78 22. INVENTORIES
£8 GROUP
“EENE —ETNF
2009 2008
FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
JR#} Raw materials 15,466 6,966
THREAM Spare parts and others 15,817 11,040
31,283 18,006
23. HFEHEEZME 23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
B8 GROUP
—EEBAE T N\F
2009 2008
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
=) At beginning of year 303,521 11,289
BREERET Transfer from properties under
mE (HE17) development (nofe 17) 854,310 672,275
FANEZYE Properties sold during the year (689,682) (380,043)
E N B Exchange realignment 5,727 —
FR Atend of year 473,876 303,521
AEERFRAEHHEEZDELURTER The Group's properties held for sale are located in Mainland China and
MEARBENRHE - AEEETH are held under long term leases. Certain of the Group's properties held
BEHHEEZMETIERTRIT - ER for sale were pledged to banks as security for certain banking facilities
AEBER 2 ETRITEE 2 HA (M granted to the Group (nofe 31).

31) ©
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24. BEEHN

25,

&HE

BEPEBAH
TRRZRRK
REFBEBAEHN
TRRZHA

FEEZAHKANEE
AR H BB AR MR
EHRREE

B B

B E 5 BRX

24. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

GROUP
—EEAE —EENFE
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
Amounts due from customers 53,818 78,703
for contract works
Amounts due fo customers
for contract works (132,106) (166,399
(78,288) (87,696)
Confract costs incurred plus
recognised profits less 3,458,094 2,000,427
recognised losses to date
less: Progress billings
received and receivable (3,536,382) (2,988,123
(78,288) (87,696)

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

AEERBEAMITEEESNEEER
R-BTEFEPZYTH—REEH
R0B A (BIRREIEERIN) - AR
BEEETHRT BERLXAAR
AEEZRBESERFERETAT
PER BHRECFERRENETZ
BN - BRRBESEFEGRRE -

]

FEUE 5 R 3K
BE

Impairment

The Group has established credit policies that follow local industry
standards. The average normal credit periods offered fo trade customers

other than for refention receivables are within 90 days, and are subject
fo periodic review by management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of

diversified customers, there is no significont concentration of credit risk.

Trade receivables are non-inferest-bearing.

GROUP

Trade receivables

—gTRE -—TINE
2009 2008
FHT FHAT
HK$000  HK$'000
300993 284,224

(828) (224)
300,165 284,000
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25. BWE 5 R (&)

NEZAHEEBFENE  BRE
SEFREEB ZREDTMT
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as af the balance sheet date,
based on the invoice dafe and net of provision, is as follows:

£8 GROUP
—EETNF —EENE
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEWE Z R : Trade receivables:

90H A Within 90 days 173,752 187,933
91H£180H 91 to 180 days 245 411
181H Z360H 181 1o 360 days 2,077 690
360H LA Lk Over 360 days 17 419
176,191 189,453
FEWIR E & Retention receivables 123,974 94,547
300,165 284,000

BB SEFRERE2EBHMT -

The movements in provision for individual impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

&8 GROUP
“EBhE —EENF
2009 2008
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
F1) At beginning of year 224 313
ERARERHE Impairment losses recognised 1,220 52
EREAERBR Impairment losses written back — (140)
WiH RS AT U 2 BB Amount written off as uncollectible (616) (1)
FR At end of year 828 224

AL ENE SRR EEE
828,000/ 7t (ZTZ )\ F : 224,000
jt) - BRmEAA{E 51,328,000 T (=&
T\ : 224,000/ ) ° BRI A
BUEZERRERVBEREZRP
B BHEAMKEEF—HH o

Included in the above provision for impairment of frade receivables of
HK$828,000 (2008: HK$224,000) with a gross carrying amount of
HK$ 1,328,000 (2008: HK$224,000). The individually impaired
trade receivables relate to customers that were in financial difficulties and
only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered fo be
impaired is as follows:

58 GROUP
—EThF —ZTENF
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
SERETERE Neither past due nor impaired 297,726 282,480
1THZE 90 HRiAH 1 to 90 days past due 245 417
91HZE270E A EEHR 91 to 270 days past due 1,577 690
2708 % 3600 A8 5 More than 270 days past due 117 419
299,665 284,000

MEAHMMEREZRKFEERE
TETPBOBELNTRAE,LAER -
EREHELENEERKFAERE
BASERERHRHTHNBUE
FER - REBERR  KARAEZR
RE HANGEEEEYEEAEHA
BEDGAT2HEE - SHELE
RAEHEFELRERRE - ~AEEY
ERRSEERAEAERIRESHE
tHiEE -

26. HMEWIR - ANRIERR £

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of
default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

26. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

£ N E
GROUP COMPANY
“ETHhF ZETETN\F ZEBENFE —TIT)N\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET FHET FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
B FRIA Prepayments and
KiT& deposits 21,184 72,310 159 169
H {h fE U 3R Other receivables 12,555 166,367 — —
33,739 238,677 159 169
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26.

27.

Htv B IR ~ B RERR &
(&)

R-ZENF=A=+—H8 st AHf
e Yo k38 A A R #140,000,0007T (1B &
A 155,344,000/ 7T ) 2 /& % BUIS # 2
BN UWRBEAEBETKEZEE
Bi FHEERAENZE - &1
ERBRE_SZEN\FRABETA
58 -

MELAEED BHKBBRRE - &
ALEF EREERY BITHE
WESE 2 ERWFIAR -

26.

2008/2009 Annual Report

OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS
(Cont'd)

At 31 March 2008, included in other receivables was an amount of
RMB 140,000,000 (equivalent to HK$155,344,000) advanced fo the
government authority in Shenyang for arranging the relocation of
residents of the land in Shenyang to be acquired by the Group. The
advance was subsequently repaid to the Group in May 2008.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assefs included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.

RERBITEF 27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
58 GROUP
—EThE —EENF
2009 2008
fit &t FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
THER Time deposifs () 96,477 28,768
XRHEE Restricted cash la), (b) 56,675 3,537
Be RRTET Cash and bank balances [a) 125,416 214,225
Biat - Notes:

a) REEB - KNEBEA £242,836,000
AL (ZFZ)\F : 213,780,000
T ZBRERBITHEFIUARE
(TARE]) BB - ARERTAH
RpBEMEY  AMBENEER
BOIRGEE SERMTEEERE
AEBEAEBRERBETINEER
21T BARBHBBEMER -

ROEFRERRTERNEFELY
BFERRRAE - ERERFEHAEDT
RzBEHER > A—RETZEAT
& RIREEASREBRME -
R A B 2 5 5 E B SN R R ER A
B ReRBTHEF ROERANT
ERE - RITEF RIS FALELH
BOBEL 2 FREEZRIT -

b) RZZBENF=ZA=+—H ZR#
ReERBEAKEZRITEREZHN
FENREERTRPZEREN - 1
ZZEZN\F=ZR=+—H BREHE
BEER  REERTRFRBEE
FRTFMEZCHET 2 ETARE
SHEEME -

[a]  Atthe balance sheet date, the total cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi ["RMB"] amounted to HK$242,836,000
[2008: HK$213,780,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China'’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Adminisiration of Sefflement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitied fo exchange RMB for other
currencies through authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and twelve months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn inferest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances
approximate fo their fair values. The bank balances and deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

(bl Asat 31 March 2009, restricted cash represented time deposits
maintained in an escrow bank account pursuant fo the terms of the Group's
banking facilities. As at 31 March 2008, pursuant o relevant regulations
in the PRC, certain deposits received from the pre-sale of properties under
development in a designated bank account can only be used for the
construction of the relevant properties.
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TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the balance sheet date,
based on the invoice date is as follows:

£H NG
GROUP COMPANY

“BREAF —TTNF ZZEAF —TIENF

2009 2008 2009 2008

FET T#T FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

JERE BB Trade payables:

30HA Within 30 days 205,260 82,236 ) 6
31HZ90H 3110 90 days 1,398 12,212 5 —
91H£180H 91 1o 180 days 8,071 4,609 = =
1808 M £ Over 180 days 4,550 1,826 — —
219,279 100,883 ) 6

ERRE S Refention payables 90,728 22,894 — -
&t 5IR Accruals 96,897 38,190 696 657
406,904 221,967 702 663
BNESEFIREE  —RERH The trade payables are non-interestbearing and are normally settled on

RNTH:

HENIE EWRFTE RFER
IR

HENREDREE  FHERY
A=A -

EWET &

RZZEZAF=RA=+—8 B&Ki]
SEZENEHEANRBTPIE
A&  AREAREZATEEY
RRR -

RZZBENF=A=+—0 2%
CEBZENEREANRAETPIE
WAl & - ASERDRDEZERIH
BENX  -AmRERFPITEEHN &
HRBFEREANRE  FFAERRA
AEEXNAIE - AREARKEZZ
FERIRRE -

29.

30.

90-day terms.

OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS IN
ADVANCE

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of

one month.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED

As at 31 March 2009, deposits received represented down payment
received from customers upon signing of the sale contracts of properties.
Such amounts held by the Group are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 March 2008, deposits received represented down payment
received from customers upon signing of the pre-sale contracts of
properties. The Group conducted the pre-sale of properties when they
were still under development. As contracted with customers, deposifs
were paid fo the Group shortly from the signing of the pre-sale contracts.
Such amounts held by the Group are non-interestbearing.
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

“EENE ZEEN\E
2009 2008
&8 GROUP = ik ERA%
Effective Effective
interest inferest
rate R TEn rate HR TAET
(%) Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
"BHER Unsecured:
RITER Bank loans 1.4-5.8 2009-2012 222,808 1866  2008-2011 246,254
[ERMEER Trust receipt loans - - - 3.7-8.3 2008 43,651
222,808 289,905
BHEA Secured:
RITEX Bank overdrafts - - - 5.37.8 On demand 8,443
ERMEER Trust receipt loans 2.1-5.1 2009 43,000 6.08.3 2008 14,420
RITER Bank loans 1.6-9.1 2009-2012 285,428 3.07.2  2008-2009 119,194
PHER Instalment loans 1.4-5.0 2009-2022 88,194 50 2008-2022 01,512
416,622 233,569
ROBERE Total bank borrowings 639,430 523,474
“ERNF ZERN\E
2009 2008
FEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETHEE 247 ¢ Analysed info:
ARTSEEA  Bank borrowings
EBRZHFITEE :  repayable:
R—FR5 Within one year
bRl oron demand 396,851 255,075
F_F In the second year 126,846 83,023
F=FZERF  Inthe third tofifth
(BREEEME)  years, inclusive 76,777 111,842
BBRELF Beyond five years 38,956 73,534
639,430 523474
BIR—FENEE - Porion due within
PERRY one year, classified
BE2HM as current liabilities (396,851) (255,075)
REHH long ferm portion 242,579 268,399



31. RIRITIEE (&)

AEBZ7ERRTEENHAAEER
EHEBREES 514131,903,000% T
(ZZZT )\ & : 136,069,000 L) -
332,560,000 T (Z T T N\ F :
337,060,000/ 7T.) 229,925,000/ 7T
(ZZETNF B 2ETETFT R
R (FH3E14)  IREWE (HI515)
R EHEE 2 ME (MiE23) B
1 o

o RRBERARRETHER
ARBZHEEREFIER (M
38(a)) °

AKEMRBRTEEDRFBM KRG
B RITBEZERAERERFER
% o
AEENZEERAEN 2 RITEE
BREELNT

5T
AR
AHE
Bt
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

The Group's secured bank borrowings were secured by certain of its
building, equipment and machinery (note 14), investment properties
(nofe 15) and properties held for sale (nofe 23) with carrying amounts of
HK$131,903,000 (2008: HK$136,069,000), HK$332,560,000
(2008: HK$337,060,000), and HK$229,925,000 (2008: nil),

respectively, at the balance sheet date.

In addition, the Company has executed guarantees in respect of
borrowing facilities granted to certain of the Company’s subsidiaries

(note 38(al).

All of the bank borrowings of the Group bear inferest at floating interest
rates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their

fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group's bank borrowings denominated in

various currencies are as follows:

ZERNE k¥ JR:2

2009 2008

TEx TEL

HK$'000 HK$'000

Hong Kong dollars 618,052 462,813
Renminbi 21,378 41,344
Yen — 7,429
Euro = 11,888
639,430 523,474
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32. ELERIA 32. DEFERRED TAX
RAFERN  BERBABREEZ The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are
SEWMT as follows:
BEAEFHIEERE Deferred tax liabilities
&6 GROUP
ERE
BHER
TEDS
EfREME  Depreciation
Revaluation  allowance in B
ofinvestment excess of related ~ Withholding st
properties  depreciation faxes Total
FET FEx FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
RZTZLFEMA—H: At April 2007 (222,274) (2,559 — (224,833
FENABREER/ Deferred tax credited /(charged)
(RBREMKB) 2 fo the income statement 3,012 (2,152) — 860
BT during the year
ERRE Exchange realignment (27,103] — — (27.103]
RZZEENF=B=1+—H8 At31 March 2008 (246,365) 4,711) — (251,076)
R-ZZZEN\FNA—A AT April 2008 (246,365) 4,711) — (251,076)
FENABREER/ Deferred tax credited /(charged)
(REBRENR) 2 fo the income stafement
ELERE during the year 1,034 (3,345) (18,968 (21,279)
ERHE Exchange realignment (6,064) — — (6,064)
R-ZBENEF

=ZB=t-H A 31 March 2009 (251,395) (8,056) (18,968) (278,419)




ERERLIR (&)

WRERR  BERBEERAEY
20T (8

EAHIEEE
ESE]

R-ZZTFTLFMA—H

RZZEENF=A=+—H
NZEENFNA—H
FRFABREX

ZIEER A

R-ZZBZENF=A=1—H

AEEBRERBELECREBEA
241,825,000 T (Z T T N\ F
326,500,000/ 7T.) - A] A fE MR HI4E
HHABBZARZARERT &
e RAEABEIHBRARMEL
JHEBRITERRBELHBE
E  BBEXRTAMNBRNAENREE
B ETATRE -

RIEFEHEEAESTE  RAEA
WRIIMIEEERBEIIMREET IR
ZIREBBMI0%EM - ZIBHRE
AT \F-A-RELERLER
R-FELE+ A=t HZRE
EZ8F - WP ERENREEMRE
AEERA] AR ERE - RIA8E A
BECEMBERE - AAREME
ERBERE% At NEBZARE
REAEBAMKLZMBARRE —F
TNF-A-HRELEZRNMM@A

IR 7 IR SR TEIR -
AABRMG FERE RS ETM
FTSHER -
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are
as follows: (Cont'd)

Deferred tax asset

GROUP
T I (E R A
Provision of
land appreciation fax
FET
HK$'000
AT Apil 2007,
31 March 2008 and
1 April 2008 !
Deferred tax credited
fo the income sfatement
during the year 29,051
At 31 March 2009

29,051

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$241,825,000
(2008: HK$326,500,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been lossmaking for some
fime and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the fax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the New CIT law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to

enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective

foreign investors from the foreign investment

from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between China and jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by its subsidiary established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income fax consequences attaching fo the payment of
dividends by the Company fo its shareholders.

FARMBERARAG @
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33. B

34.

K17

R
2,000,000,000/%
SR EE0BT Y HAR

BERITRER
838,215,903k (=TT )\ & :
837,465,903/%)
SREE0.10/E Tz L@

FR- AASEEREEBTEMUR
HEESX0.82/8 L3 17750,000/ F %
HEEIOB L ZkG BHRERER
615,000/ 7T (FIBR AT ©

BIE

ARA BB 8 2 BN B
KM EE34

BB I HE T &

ARBRERYL —RERERE ([5
g)  REAKERDNEEFLERZ
RERSRERUBRH LR - Zat
BZAER2EERBEARAIZES
(BRBUFNTES) RAKEE D

B ADERFR R X AT 8 h 2 MR AT
BRESSHE  AHTEBBEAR
A ERIEEE HTRD210% °

—
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33. SHARE CAPITAL
Shares
NS
COMPANY
—EENF —ZTENF
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$'000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
838,215,903(2008: 837,465,903
ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each 83,821 83,746

34.

During the year, 750,000 shares of HK$0. 10 each were issued for cash
at a subscription price of HK$0.82 per share pursuant to the exercise of

the Company’s share options for a total cash consideration, before
expenses of HK$615,000.

Share options

Details of the Company's share option scheme are included in note 34 to
the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company currently operates a share option scheme [the “Scheme")
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute fo the success of the Group's operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, and other employees of
the Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted fo
be granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any ftime.



34. BIRHERTE (&)

ADRZFTEMBNT
B &

Purpose

2mE

Participants

AFET EBRABENFRER
AHAEERTRAZABED]

Total number of ordinary shares available
for issue and the percentage of the issued
share capital that it represents as af the
date of the annual report

BER2EEZEEEE
Maximum entitlement of each participant

BRIEEREVEREES IR
Period within which the securities must be

taken up under an option

TR AT VB4 B B R 2 B HARR
Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

S EEAE Y ANE S

Amount payable on acceptance

BETEBZEE
Basis for determining the exercise price
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A summary of the Scheme of the Company is as follows:

REBAERZ2EENERARR B ERELRERR - ANER
ENFEELBNRERMERZ AR AEBHR °

To encourage eligible participants to perform their best in achieving the
goals of the Company while af the same time allow them to share the
fruits of the Company's business achieved through their effort and
contribution.

ARARISHEMMBLARIZITEAR BEFEF (BRATES
RIFMTESR) -

Executives or employees or directors (including both executive directors
and non-executive directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

40,196,590 & Bk} B HITHA 24.8% °
40,196,590 ordinary shares and 4.8% of the issued share capital.

TEEEMEM12EAARABARRAEEITREZ 1% o
Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

MEFETRNEFRARA  EREABER T NERK HBRE
ERRTEN  EXBERENRLEZEXARR -

Defermined and nofified by the directors to each grantee, but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of options
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

MEFETREARBHEBOEMGT -
To be defermined by the directors and included in the relevant offer
letters.

/ﬂ}\I\ o
Nil.

MEFEETE  BLAAUTZRSEIRNZEE : (IRBEBFR
HEREEE (WEREXER) H EBRXMARKRAREER K
ME: RINEERLBERERHNRAEZER  SRRNBRM
A&z FHRME -

Determined by the directors but must be the highest of (i) the nominal
value of shares; [ii) the closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
share options, which must be a business day; and (iii] the average
closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of options.
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34. BRr#ETE (&) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
ARAztEMENT - (B) A summary of the Scheme of the Company is as follows: (Cont'd)
FEZBRTFE AEEREN BEER_T-—_F/\A-++tR-
The remaining life of the Scheme The Scheme remains in force until 27 August 2012.
BEREYER THAANBRBRELR Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or fo vote
BEREG L REZEF - at shareholders’ meetings.
FARBHEMARTEZERED The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during
N the year:
“EBhE —ZTN\F
2009 2008
e ik
F13 F19
TEE fERlRE TEE BB 2
Weighted £ 4= Weighted 2 A
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of opfions
B F BT T+
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
=25 =3
per share per share
F4) At beginning of year 0.82 35,000 — —
FARE Granted/[exercised)
/(171%) during the year 0.82 (750) 0.82 35,000

FR Atend of year 0.82 34,250 0.82 35,000
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34. BRERTE (&) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
REER  BARTEBREZITERE The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options oufstanding
RATEHREmT as af that balance sheet date are as follows:
—E2TAF —TTN\F
2009 2008
BREHE BERkEHA 1TEEE* 1T HR
Number of options Number of options Exercise price* Exercise periods
F T BB T
‘000 ‘000 HK$ per share
2,125 2,875 0.82 —_TZ+FNAAAH

E-T——FN\AZ+=H

59-2007 10 23-8-2011

625 625 0.82 —ER+FNANHE
E-T——FN\AZ+=H

6-9-2007 10 23-8-2011

4,000 4,000 0.82 “EEHHFNA-+tH
E-T——FN\AZ+=H

27-9-2007 t0 23-8-2011

1,250 1,250 0.82 —EE+FNAZT+H
E-T——FN\AZ+=H

30-8-2007 t0 23-8-2011

8,750 8,750 0.82 —EENEFENA=-+MAH
E-T——FN\AZ+=H

24-8-2008 t0 23-8-2011

8,750 8,750 0.82 “EENFENA=+MAE
E-T——FN\AZ+=H

24-8-2009 t0 23-8-2011

8,750 8,750 0.82 —E-EF N \A=-+MAH
E-T——FN\A=+=H

24-8-201010 23-8-2011

34,250 35,000
* O BREZTEERMEREAIRE ¥ The exercise price of the share options is subject fo adjustment in case of
17 AR RIRAHEMMEUZL ST rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share
{ELHEHE - capifal.
RBE_ZZENEF=A=1+—BILHF The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 31
ER BREuEREZATEE March 2008 was HK$ 15,798,000 (average fair value of HK$0.45
15,798,000 7L (B FH A F(E R each) of which the Group recognised a share option expense of
0.4587T) * W - H 15,193,000/ 7T HK$5,193,000 (2008 : HK$7,725,000) during the year.

(ZEZ )\ : 7,725,000 7T) & A&
SERALBEREMAY -
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34.

35.

BEsTE (&)

REEH  BEE  A28H
34,250,000 ( — T T N\ £
35,000,000/ ) & AR # 1w RAT(F o 1RIR
ARABRTRALERE - 2ETEE KT
FZBBRESEHARBEINET
34,250,000k (= & & N\
35,000,000/% ) & @ % - BINR K B
3,425,000/ 7T (ZZZ\F : 3,500,000
BT - RS E IBRETRZAD B
24,660,000 T (= T & N\ &
25,200,000/ 7T) °

NWEER% E-_TTAF AT
WE  #Z—EAREZEHT £
800,000, BE % # B LK »

REEZEVBHREER - BEF
2| - KA 8)A33,450,0000 (ZZEZN
% : 35,000,000/ ) & AR #E M) R AT -
BARRRIEAEBRITRNODNLI%(ZF
ZNFE 42%) °

(G

(a) £H

RAFERBEFEASEFRE
TRRAEINHHERREBE
EARRBHREY -

BREFHNEGELEZBBEDIR
Bl - A& B B 2 B
DR N BREBRERTE®
REERME -

34.

35.

(a)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 34,250,000 (2008:
35,000,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 34,250,000
(2008: 35,000,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$ 3,425,000 (2008: HK$3,500,000)
and share premium of HK$24,660,000 (2008: HK$25,200,000)

before issue expenses.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 24 June 2009, a total of
800,000 share options were lapsed upon resignation of an employee.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had
33,450,000 (2008: 35,000,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 4.1% (2008: 4.2%) of
the Company's shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 38 of the financial statements.

Pursuant fo the relevant laws and regulations for Sinoforeign joint venture
enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's subsidiaries which are
registered in the PRC has been transferred fo statutory reserves which are
restricted as fo use.



35. &t (&)

(b) 27]

RoTRLEMA-8 A1 Apil 2007

rEEBR Loss for fhe year
ZEELFEER  Findl 2007 dividend
RERE declored

REGEEREZSE  Eouiysetled shore
option arrangements
“EENEER Interim 2008

PHRE dividend poid
“ET)\ERER Proposed 2008
RERE fincl dividend
R-ZENE A 31 March 2008
ZR=t-HR ond
ZER\ERA-A 1 Api 2008
RERHH Proftfor he year
et Equitysefled share
BREH opfion arrcngemen's
fEERE Bxercise ofshare opfions
“EETNFEER  Finol 2008
KERE dividend declored
“ETAERN Inerim 2009
PHRE dividend paid
ETNERER Proposed 2009
FERE finol dividend

RZESNE At 31 March 2000
“A=T-H

ARBFHABERIERAR B D
LA RER—ANL—F2&
EEEMBAZHBRRIRN A
FE - BRBARFTDHITRG
ZEBEZHE - RE-AN—F
BREQATDE  EETHERT
ARBAEHARBD KT K
o
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35. RESERVES (Cont'd)

(b) Company

REER/
RBEEE ERERE  (BHFR)  RRAERR
Share SARS Share  Refained profits/ Proposed
premium ~ Confrbuted opion ~ (Accumuloted finol b
account surplus feserve losses) dividend Totl

ifid Tir T Tir TEL TEn TEn
Noles — HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 1000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 1000

318437 29930 - 17,592 12,562 378,501
- - - (5,098 = (5,098
- - - = 12,562 12,562

- - 7725 - = 7725
12 - - - (8,375] = (8,373
12 - - - (12,562 12,562 =
318437 29930 7725 (8,483 12,562 960,191

- - - 16,841 - 16,841

- - 3,193 - = 3,193

33 816 - (276] - = 340
12 - - - = 12,562 12,562
12 - - - (8,382 = (6,382
12 - - = 12,573 12573 =
519,253 29,950 12,642 (12,597) 12,573 561,821

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the fair
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant fo the Group
reorganisation in 1991 prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, over
the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in exchange therefor.
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company may make
distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus under certain

circumstances.



TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

S8 5 8 ¢ Y ik
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2009 —ZTAF=A=+—H

36.

REMENZHE

(a) TERBHBEA

ASERBEEHOZT - UHE
NERNFRMEDSE - HEEE
THes (M E14) REKEME (Y
i16) o MAOBHR—RIRERBEP
REPXNEM € RIRERT
NEHELHSRE -

REHER  AREREBEEAREP
REPAM TR HEEERLD
RATEBz RERERKES
mEWT
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

The Group leases certain of its machinery (note 14 and its investment
properties [note 15) under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from two to four years. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants and customers to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rental adjustments according fo the
then prevailing market conditions.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with ifs fenants and
customers falling due as follows:

£8 GROUP
—EENF —ETN\F
2009 2008
TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FRN Within one year 65,676 64,297

E_EERF In the second to fifth years,

(BREEMST) inclusive 43,620 31,635
109,296 Q5,932




ooosppono e A BHEHBERSE R A G
S 5 8k o Y ek

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2009 —EZEAE=A=1—A

36. KEHN=ZH (&) 36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) 1ERAMEA (b) As lessee
AEBERBEEHOTH - UHE The Group leases certain of its office properties, warehouses, staff
NEM|NFRERTER - %M quarters and certain machinery under operating lease arrangements,
ATHMAEYE B BIRE with leases negotiated for terms ranging from six fo sixty months.

ERETHES -

REER - REBRE T HH At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future minimum lease
REBORUATERZ RRKE payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:
BAOMKEENT
&8 GROUP
“2Zhf —ZTENF I
2009 2008 'ul
FET FET \
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 9,284 11,091
F_EERF In the second to fifth years,
(BREEMF) inclusive 3,872 7416
13,156 18,507
ARAREER T EEMRLENR The Company did not have any operating lease arrangement at the

DLk (ZTENF - |) o balance sheet date (2008: Nil).
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37. A

BR b 32T 3 36 (o) 3F 4 2 A% & R A AR R
O REER - AEBFBERAEN

37. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments defailed in note 36(b)
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the balance

T sheet date:
£8 GROUP
—EThE —EENF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B BRETH Authorised, but not contracted for
ME - ERERRE Property, plant and equipment 9,479 8,858
BETR) - BRIERE Contracted, but not provided for
M - B REE Property, plant and equipment 23,446 34,953
T E A Land use rights — 164,000
23,446 198,953
32,925 207,811

o REERERTMEZEITY
BRERBZAER_TTNF=FA
=+—HA257,382,0008 L (ZZTZF
J\%E : 577,593,000/ 7T) °

REEH  ARRIUEEAAE (ZF
TNFE E) -

In addition, the Group had confracted, but not provided for, commitments

in respect of construction works relating to properties under development
amounting to HK$257,382,000 as at 31 March 2009 (2008:
HK$577,593,000.

The Company had no significant commitments at the balance sheet date

(2008: Nil).
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for in

BEIIRBENT the financial statements were as follows:
&8 NG
GROUP COMPANY
—EENE —EENF —EENE —EENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET FAL FE FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
RE R Guarantees given fo financial
FMTEARRE  institutions in connection with
—REEER general credit faciliies and finance

RBEMOER  lease facilities granted

4 T2 ER to subsidiaries — — 1,040,366 705,500
RENRES Guarantees in respect of
miEd 2 ER performance bonds 154,041 135,760 154,041 135,760

RZEENF=ZA=+—H " ' K
SERETHEARLZRIBRE
MRHER  ZZREREIR
AARENBETHASEE
MEARER  MEMLH2IZ
BER  ZEERZABERS
B30 4281,409,0007 7T ©

ARENERBREHERERS
EXE ERHEREEEER
IF e

RZFZNF=ZA=1—8B &
EERZAFELTEXR ME
ERRMAREE N TR - AEY
X2 ERFERMEHERMN
REBASHRBPERETNE R
AR MM BRI ER L
ERIEM B -

154,041 135,760 1,194,407 841,260

(b]  Asat 31 March 2008, the Group had provided guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating to
the mortgage loans arranged for purchases of certain properties
developed by a subsidiary of the Group and the outstanding
mortgage loans under these guarantees amounted to

HK$281,409,000.

The Group's guarantee period started from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and ended upon issuance of the relevant
ownership certificates.

The fair value of the guarantees was not significant and the
directors considered that in case of default in payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties could cover the repayment
of the outstanding mortgage principal together with the accrued
interest and penalty and therefore no provision had been made for
the guarantees in the financial statements at 31 March 2008.
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38. HZARERE

(c)

(&)
— = 7)\£'E/\H+/\EI Z'KE
@ﬁt/ —HRARER

Utﬁiﬁnﬁﬁ@ﬁ b g
FEZFRIZEREEARE
5,180,0007T ( #75,872,000/% 7T )
ZREEZRBEAL - AR
AEBHE=FRANKILR
DEMB ([ EE1TE)]) - RZF
ZNFNLANE  EETHZHE
EREEERRERY - WA
ol HABEREBE A EGIM
FEFBUAGIETT - REERR=
ZEN\F+-AELBERK
[ - B EFE&ERZRENR
“EENF-RELETEAA
RizEREE - R=TZNEF=A
—“+tH - AEEEELEER

BH - EBTH RERR D
RER BRAREXMTARE

5,180,0007T ° AL B IFEEARF L
BEGETEHBE  mMAEER
BREHBREBERRERE
#o

RZZEZNFENA+TH  EFE
aEEk ([BAER]) —BEE
BHZEENESR  LETHZ
BEEZRAEBIRHARE
5,180,0007C ([&#&1TE)]) - K&
BER-_ZZN\F+A=+/\H
MEBERBBEREMENLE
ERAXBAZERTR EM
FBERF  REAR LBERERSE
BEREABEHMEL DB
ETHR - AEBEESHEB
EhETRAMAESEAZFZH
/H\]q °
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(c)

On 16 June 2008, the Group lodged a petition to the Shanghai
First Intermediate People’s Court (the “Shanghai Court” fo rescind a
service contract signed with a third party for a service fee of up fo a
maximum amount of RMBS5,180,000 (approximately
HK$5,872,000) as a result of a dispute in the contract terms
between the Group and the third party (the “Shanghai Action”). On
9 September 2008, the defendant of the Shanghai Action
submitted its objection to the Shanghai Court and claimed that the
adjudication of the disputes should be raised under the Hong Kong
law instead of the PRC Law. The objection was dismissed by the
Shanghai Court in November 2008 and the appeal against the
decision of the Shanghai Court was also dismissed by the
Shanghai Higher People’s Court in January 2009. On 27 February
2009, the Group received a nofification from the Shanghai Court
that the defendant of the Shanghai Action submitted a counterclaim
and requested the Group to make the payment of RMBS5, 180,000.
fix the date
for the trial and the Group will submit the defence fo the Shanghai

The Group is currently waiting for the Shanghai Court to

Court at the trial.

On 10 September 2008, by a writ issued in the Court of First
Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong Court"),
the defendant of the Shanghai Action, claimed the Group for the
payment of RMB5, 180,000 (the “Hong Kong Action”). The Group
has applied on 28 October 2008 to the Hong Kong Court to stay
all further proceedings in the Hong Kong Action in favour of the
Shanghai Court on the ground that the Shanghai Court is a more
appropriate forum than the Hong Kong Court for the adjudication
of the disputes raised. The Group is currently also waiting for the
Hong Kong Court fo fix a date for the hearing of the Group's
application.
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Having considered the legal advice from the Group's PRC legal
counsels, the directors believe that the Group has a good case in
respect of the Shanghai Action. In addition, taking into account of
the legal advice from the Group’s Hong Kong legal counsels, the
directors believe that the Group has good grounds of defence in
case the Hong Kong Action is ordered to proceed in Hong Kong.
Accordingly, the directors consider that no provision for the service
fee is necessary.

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Outstanding balance with a related party

Details of the Group's amount due from its associate as at the
balance sheet date are included in note 20 to the financial
sfatements.

AEBTEEEANE 2 HB W (b) Compensation of key management personnel of the
T Group
B GROUP
—2EAE ZTIN\F
2009 2008
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHEEEA Short term employee benefits 32,022 28,109
EEERERT Equity-settled share option expense 4,923 7,328
ER®%EH Postemployment benefits 128 116
ENTEEEBRAE Tolal compensation paid fo key
2 R e management personnel 37,073 SGIEE 3

EREEHMeFRBERNUIBERE
BisES o

FAAEEFEECRLEEZ
—ERAEMEMEERNT TE
BERARAR (AARA—EH
TESEKLEHEA0%NEER)
ZH£H%1,9100008 T (=ZF
Z)\% : 1,680,000 7C) °

(c]

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8 to
the financial statements.

During the year, the Group incurred rental expenses fo Land Smart
Development Limited, a company owned as to 50% by Mr. David
Chien, an executive director of the Company, in respect of a lease
for an office property in Shanghai of HK$ 1,910,000 (2008:
HK$1,680,000)
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40. ZERE D 2EMIA 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

REEH  EREMIAZKREEN

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial insfruments as

T at the balance sheet date are as follows:
£5 GROUP
EREE Financial assets
“ZENE “ER\E
2009 2008
BOVERA BATEIA
ERveREE BREREE
—BEEE —FEEE
Financial assefs Financiol assefs
atfair value atfair value
EHR  through profit Bk through proft
EhzE orloss— EzE orloss
Loans and held for #3f Loans and held for #it
receivables trading Totel recelvables frading Totol
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RUBSER Trade receivables 300,165 - 300,165 284,000 - 284,000
ZATHE Equiy invesiments of
fTABR fairvalue
LEARE through profit or loss - 2,501 2,501 - 14,452 14,452
ARl Other receivables 12,555 — 12,555 166,367 — 166,367
THER Time deposis 96,477 — 96,477 28,768 — 28,768
XRHES Resticted cash 56,675 - 56,675 3,537 - 3,537
BEeRBNER Cash and bank balances 125,416 - 125,416 214,225 - 214,225
591,288 2,501 593,789 696,897 14,457 711,349
= N=L Financial liabilities
—EENE “EENE
2009 2008
REERATER REBERATR
ZEREE JEREE

Financial liabilities Financial liabilities

at amortised cost ot amortised cost

FER TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

ENESERRENRES Tade payables and refention payables 310,007 123,777
H ot A 50R Other payables 20,885 31,359
M ERITIEE Inferest-bearing bank borrowings 639,430 523,474
970,322 678,610
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40. RERE D 2RI E (&) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)
AN=T| COMPANY
SREE Financial assets
“ZEZRE —EENE
2009 2008
EXRERGE EXRERGIE
Loans and loans and
receivables receivables
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BiE A a2 xR (BEE19) Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 19) 775123 777 208
RITHET Bank balances 193 270
775,316 /77,478
SREE Financial liabilities
—EERE —EEN\E
2009 2008

R R ARSI R 12 SRR B BR
ZERMEE ZEemEE
Financial liabilities Financial liabilities
at amortised cost ot amortised cost
FH T T#T

HK$'000 HK$'000

KRB AR 2 FIE Amounts due fo subsidiaries 146,169 144,892
JE R E 5 B8R0 Trade payables 6 6

146,175 144,898
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1. BHEREERREREE

AEBCIZRIABERE KRR
1T467F - BWE RN E U
B BAVEFABZZBNHEE
FEAS 5 5 Bk ok I H At A9 50 IB DA 2 3R
T8 ZEeMIAZHEBERUHK
HRABMEIARE - EZFERT
AR RRRMAREZSRRZ
BREHIMT - EEEEENERK
TRk - ARERER kAR REVE

B

=EEmRERE

AREZTREREERTE MR
B AR EIE B8R R i fE

TR o

ARBERAEER S 2 RITHABRR
FEFRARBERTZREENE &
RITBFZEERARTK

AEEZEERREIEREEEKRE
SEFEEMBEKARIE EEERE
ERGHERNESEE  MASER
HBERBRYTEKX - AEETE
FERBRBESET BN IEHZ
RRAMZELZEARZIEFREFL - A
AASEERRARKESERRE
fEKFEFERBR 2 ES L8
BRI SRR M 325 K% 2655 -

AEBERAARMAR T BHERMD
EAREERR  #—FPFBERTBR
RUTFE38HE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include cash and bank balances,
frade and other receivables, equity investments at fair value through profit
orloss, trade and other payables and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes to these
financial statements. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how fo mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure that
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assefs are cash and bank balances, and
frade and other receivables.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high creditratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily atiributable fo its trade and other
receivables. Management monitors each individual trade debt on an
ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with the
exposure spreading over a large number of counterparties and
customers. Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure fo
credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are disclosed in notes
25 and 26 to the financial statements.

The Group and the Company are also exposed to credit risk through the
granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in
nofe 38 fo the financial statements.
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MEEBEEEEREE (&) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)
Tl 2 [z B Interest rate risk
AEBERGZMNEZEHERTIZHRN The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to
MERTEEEE - PEEEREE its interestbearing bank borrowings. Borrowings at variable rafes expose
B e ) R L B o N2 B B A the Group to interest rate risk. The Group currently does not have an
KEHMHR - BEML - EEEEE interest rate hedging policy. However, management monitors the Group's
AEBEREG N XE R I[H%%)Fﬁ?% inferest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant inferest rate
2REPEANRE R exposure should the need arise.
TRITEMBEMBEHERTE The following table demonstrates the sensitivity fo a reasonably possible
BRAT  AEBZBREAEN (FAY change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
FREEZRE) &Zﬁg B (R Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowmgs)
FHEBIEERFER) HREREHERAS and the Group's equity (before any impact on tax).
BARLE B 2 R
£E GROUP
R EIpE]
A= D Rz
A Decrease A
Increase in in profit Decrease
inferest rate before tax in equity”
TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2AF 2009
100 £ 2
RITER Banks loans 100 basis point 6,394 —
—TTNF 2008
100 &EF 84 -
RITEX Bank overdrafts 100 basis point
100 £ & 5,150 —=
RITER Bank loans 100 boasis point

* TERREER

Excluding retained eamings
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1. MBEREREEERBE (£)

SN E 2L

AREIEREE  RFARTEAN
REXK  ERHFORZHUET
BB RARBEE - XFE - A&
BzRTEENETRARE (ZFF
NE BT AR% - BEREUT) &t
g -

TEIFR-FENE= A=+
B ERAEMEBERTEZER
T AREZBEIEN (AEEEE
REFIAFEEREY) RALEY
AU AERBTER LR AR
28 Gl -

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China
with most of ifs fransactions seffled in Hong Kong dollars, Pataca and
Renminbi. In the current year, the Group had bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi (2008: Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi, Japanese Yen and Euro).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at 31 March 2008 to a
reasonably possible exchange rafe change in Japanese Yen and Euro,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) and
the Group's equity.

£H GROUP
Bx  BRHEAER
Change in Decrease B
exchange in profit Decrease
rate before tax in equity*
TET FET
% HK$'000 HK$'000
—TENF 2008
WAETTH If Hong Kong dollars weakens
AESZ against Japanese Yen 5% 291 —
i 7 7T 5, If Hong Kong dollars weakens
EVIVERE 4 against Euro 5% 625 —

* TEERZEMN

EEERBERASEMEH EY
BB - XHRAETRE T -

Excluding refained earnings

Management monitors the Group’s currency exposure on an ongoing
basis and will enfer into hedges when the need arises.
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mEBE T E R

AEEZEEABRFARITEER
SEERMEcHE I 2 HARET
B AEBTEHRITETEESM
noERERANBEERENENE
AHE o

RIFEAINARBRER - UTHIAR
SERARANEEAZERAED
A -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between confinuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The Group
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has

adequate financial resources in meeting ifs financial obligations.

The maturity profile of the Group's and the Company’s financial liabilities
as af the balance sheet date, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

S GROUP
ZEENF
2009
12187

RER DY) 1258  5FNE
B2  lessthan Tto5 Over @t
Ondemand 12 months years 5years Total
TET TET TET THEx THEx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ENESRHRENRES  Tode payables and refention payables — 310,007 — — 310,007
EH MR Other payables — 20,885 — — 20,885
MERTEE Interestbearing bank borrowings — 397,370 203,999 38,956 640,325
- 728,262 203,999 38,956 971,217

It % JR:2
2008
1218A

REK AR 12068  SHFNLE
BE less than 05 Over @t
Ondemand 12 months years 5 years Total
TEx TEx TiEx TER TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ENESRHRENRES  Tode payables and refention payables — 123777 — — 123
EH AR Other payables = 31,359 — — 31,359
WERTEE Interestbearing bank borrowings 8,443 246,632 194,865 73,534 523,474
8,443 401,768 194,865 73,534 678,610

FARMBERARAG @
A T R ik

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2009 —ZETAF=A=+—H



TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED 2008/2009 Annual Report

S8 5 8 ¢ Y ik
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2009 —ZTAF=A=+—H

41. BREREEEEZERBE (&) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

mEBELEE (E) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
N COMPANY
S
2009
BRER 12f8ANUR 125  5HNL
BE  lessthan 1105 Over At
Ondemand 12 months years 5years Total

TET TEx TEx FEx FEx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

KB AR IR Amounts due fo subsidiaries 146,169 — — — 146,169
EREHEN Trade payables — 6 — — 6
146,169 6 - - 146,175
“BENF
2008

BEX 2HANA  1E5F SFHNE
B Less than To5 Over @it
Ondemond 12 months years 5 years Tofal

FETL FETL FETL FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RBAR 2 FE Amounts due fo subsidiaries 144,892 — — — 144,892
R HER Trade payables — 6 — — 6
144,892 6 - — 144,898
ETHEERTHEEZ L FHE Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
EERR NEREERBRMEST The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the financial assets
ZEREERCREBZERAERA and financial liabilities reported in the consolidated balance sheet
BEZRTFERE approximate to their respective fair values.
R MEE B B2 Equity price risk
P HE B AR 2 Bt 2 15 A R 4 15 BUK F &% Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities decrease
BrEscBEZDREREZSL as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
FEEREZRR R-_ZFTAFR- individual securities. The Group is exposed fo equity price risk arising
ZENF=HA=1t—H ~5EEH from individual equity investments classified as trading equity investments
AEMNBORERSEABEERMHE (note 21) as at 31 March 2009 and 2008. The Group's listed
& (FaE21) Mol Bz EEREAR - investments are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and are
AEBELTREDREEMER S valued ot quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

MERARIRED  YREEAM
GWmEGE -
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. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Equity price risk (Cont'd)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity fo every 10% decrease in
the fair values of the equity investments, with all other variables held
constant and before any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts
at the balance sheet date.

BRNEE  BRBADEF
ZBREE D R
Carrying Decrease D *
amount of in profit Decrease
equity investments before tax in equity
TET T#ET TETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—2EhE 2009
BATHE Equity investments
AR at fair value
ZBRINIE through profit or loss 2,501 250 —
—TENF 2008
BATE Equity investments
AR at fair value
2R RE through profit or loss 14,452 1,445 —

* TBEREEN

BAEE

AEEEREEZIBARAERR
EEBRNRFELERBZRAE
ERBFREFEERLRUIFEER
I & AEAIREE -

A EE R BRI BB E LA
KEBULELEE - ARBTARE

KE ASEREREIATRE
ZHRE - REREZAASETHR
- REE-BTAFZ A=+
R-ETNFZAS+-BILEE
M BRRE . BR R &
TR

*  Excluding refained earnings

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management are to
safeguard the Company's ability fo continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital rafios in order to support ifs business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments fo it,
in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the

years ended 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008.
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41. BREREEEEZERBE (&) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

EXEE (&) Capital management (Cont'd)
AEERBERBBLEXERHER The Group monitors capital using a gearing rafio, which is nef debt
B MERABLLRTIAELFER divided by the total equity of the Group. The Group's policy is to
RUREEERERZTE - AEEZH maintain the gearing ratio not more than 50%. Net debt includes inferest-
REEMAFERBBLEEN0% ° bearing bank borrowings, trade payables and retention payables, other
BEREFEBEMERTEE  ENE payables less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes tofal equity of
SEFREMNRES - HMENKE the Group. The gearing ratfios as at the balance sheef dates were as
RRERERBELEE - ERABRER follows:
SEAES  NEER BRARH
KT -
g 1% S—
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
i RRITEE Interestbearing bank borrowings 639,430 523,474
e E 5 R Trade payables and retention payables 310,007 123,777
REMRES
H A e 1 3R I8 Other payables 20,885 31,359
B EHER less: Time deposits (96,477) (28,768)
X HIR e Restricted cash (56,675) (3,537]
ReRETHEF Cash and bank balances (125,416) (214,225)
55 Net debt 691,754 432,080
B Total equity 1,934,692 1,493,384
ERBRELE Gearing ratio 36% 29%
42. B WMR 2 42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BEEEER_TTNFARAZ-+RH The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

HERKERBEMBRE - board of directors on 26 June 2009.





